NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY DECISION MEETING

THURSDAY, 23 MARCH 2017 AT 3.30PM

CONFERENCE ROOM A, SECOND FLOOR, THE CIVIC OFFICES

Telephone enquiries to Jane Di Dino 023 9283 4060 Email: jane.didino@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please notify the contact named above.

CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SAFETY DECISION MEETING Councillor Robert New (Conservative)

Group Spokespersons

Councillor Dave Ashmore, Liberal Democrat Councillor Julie Bird, UK Independence Party Councillor Stephen Morgan, Labour

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting).

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are accepted.

AGENDA

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Declaration of Members' Interests.

3

CCTV Operator Report. (Pages 3 - 6)

Purpose.

This report is to review the options available to Portsmouth City Council when the CCT Monitoring Contract currently managed by Keyline Chartered Security Limited ends on 31 July 2017. The options available are to extend the contract by one year or employ the operators in-house. There is a third option to re-tender the contract, but that process would require the 1 year extension to be agreed to meet timescales.

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Environment & Community Safety agree that the CCTV operators be brought in-house on their current terms and conditions on 1 August 2017.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue.

Agenda Item 3



Title of meeting: Environment and Community Safety Cabinet

Date of meeting: 23 March 2017

Subject: CCTV Monitoring Contract

Report by: Director of Regulatory Services and Community Safety

Wards affected: All

Key decision: No

Full Council decision: No

1. Purpose of report

This report is to review the options available to Portsmouth City Council when the CCTV Monitoring Contract, currently managed by Keyline Chartered Security Limited ends on the 31st July 2017. The options available are to extend the contract by one year or employ the operators in-house. There is a third option to re-tender the contract, but that process would require the 1 year extension to be agreed to meet timescales.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Cabinet Member for the Environment and Community Safety agree that the CCTV operators be brought in-house on their current terms and conditions on the 1st August 2017.

3. Background

- The CCTV Control Room and the equipment within it is owned by Portsmouth City Council (PCC). The CCTV Operations Manager is a PCC employee so oversees the CCTV Operator Contract, but the operators are employed by Keyline Chartered Security Ltd.
- The CCTV Control Room has two operators on duty for 365 days a year, 24 hours each day on a rota system. There is currently a supervisor and officer on duty at all times. The current number of staff required to meet this demand is four supervisors and four officers, working on a rota system.
- The CCTV Operator Contract has always been managed by an external company and on the 1st August 2013 the current contractors Keyline Chartered Security Ltd were awarded the contract following a re-tendering exercise. The existing operator team was previously managed by the



outgoing contractor Mitie Security and the operators became Keyline employees by way of TUPE.

- The current contract is for four years with the option to extend by an additional one year. The four year element of the contract ends on the 31st July 2017.
- A working group was formed to review the options and it was agreed to recommend the options to bring the operators in-house and this will likely be by way of a TUPE transfer.
- 3.6 If it is agreed to bring the contract in-house 15 weeks' notice is required to formally end the contract to enable a start date of the 1st August 2017 for the new way of working.

4. Reasons for recommendations

- 4.1 Bringing in the operators in-house should achieve a saving but more importantly give direct control of the operators to the CCTV Operations Manager. This will assist our plans in the future to identify income opportunities and enable closer synergy with the Traffic Management Control Centre as co-location is currently being progressed.
- 4.2 The Keyline contract (providing for living wage requirements) has recently been increased to £212,000 per year. The proposed in-house TUPE is estimated to cost £173,000 per year, and provides for pension access. This would contribute to the CCTV savings target for 2017/18.
- 4.3 Should all staff convert to Portsmouth City Council's terms and conditions it is estimated that this could cost in the region of £209,000 per annum based on current pay rates and anticipated pay banding. An upgrade by one pay band would increase this cost to some £229,000. However these costs could be mitigated in a number of ways including changing contracts e.g. removing the need for a shift element to ensure that budget pressures would be met.
- However, these terms are unlikely to be applicable in the short term as TUPE is applied and, should a vacancy arise in one of these posts, it would be intended to appoint an apprentice to the role. This would assist in maintaining financial stability and in meeting the budget target.
- 4.5 The operators are currently on an hourly rate above the living wage and predicted to be so until at least 2020. Therefore it is not expected to need to harmonise or change contracts for those that TUPE across for several years.
- **4.6** There remains the option to re-tender in the future.
- 4.7 The CCTV repairs and maintenance was previously contracted out and a similar exercise was completed with the CCTV engineers were brought inhouse under the management of the CCTV Manager (14 April 2015). This



has proven extremely successful in reducing the budget but also providing a better service for PCC departments to meet their CCTV needs. The operators are able to respond quickly to demands to ensure the stakeholders of Portsmouth receive a good service.

5. Equality impact assessment

- An Equality Impact Assessment is not required as the recommendations do not have a disproportionate negative impact on any of the specific protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010 for the following reasons:
 - The function has been ongoing since the introduction of the CCTV cameras in Portsmouth and there is not a change being made to policy or procedures other than the operators being employed directly by Portsmouth City Council as opposed to an external contractor managing the staff on our behalf
 - Whilst there is no direct feedback from equality groups due to the nature of this function simply being related to monitoring CCTV cameras it is not envisaged that further research is undertaken at this stage.
 - There will not be a change of working practice so the operator will continue to provide the same service whether by being contracted by an external provider or as a Portsmouth City Council employee.

6. Legal implications

- TUPE implications arise from the transfer of the Contract. This will result in a transfer of Keyline employees who spend more than 50% of their working time on this Contract.
- PCC must provide Keyline with 15 weeks' notice from the date of termination and should therefore ensure that funding is in place before serving the above mentioned notice. Directly once the notice has been served PCC are unable to invoke its right to extend the Contract.
- The contract could potentially be extended by an additional year. However, a 15 weeks' notice period must be given within that year in order to terminate the contract early. This could be challenged by the contractor.

7. Director of Finance's comments

- 7.1 The contract price has recently been increased to £212,000 per annum to reflect the impact of living wage requirements on the contractor and this has had to be accommodated in the 2017/18 budget base.
- **7.2** Based upon the available information it is anticipated that taking on existing staff under TUPE arrangements would cost between £162,000 and £182,000 depending on pension arrangements.



7.3		ngs also incorporated savings proposals of £15,000 fficiencies and CCTV operations.
7.4	terms and conditions, the	ests that should the staff all harmonise onto PCC service costs, at current pay rates, are likely to be £229,000 depending on pay grades, pension and d.
Signed b	y: Chief Executive and City Solicit	or.
Appendi	ces:	
The follo	owing documents disclose fact extent by the author in preparing	
Title of	document	Location
	ommendation(s) set out above by	e were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
	oy	